
Meeting of:  Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Date: Tuesday, 20th March, 2018
Time: 6.15 pm.
Venue: Rochdale Town Hall, The Esplanade, 

Rochdale, OL16 1AB

This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.

Item 
No.

AGENDA Page No

1.  APOLOGIES 

To receive any apologies for absence. 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.    

3.  URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS 

To determine whether there are any additional items of business 
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency. 

4.  ITEMS FOR EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 

To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to 
be excluded from the meeting. 

5.  MINUTES 3 - 9

To consider the minutes of the meeting of the Corporate Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee held 13th February 2018. 

6.  HEALTH RELATED ABSENCE REPORTING 10 - 12

To consider the third quarter health related absence figures 2017/18 

7.  HEALTH RELATED ABSENCE STUDY GROUP REPORT 13 - 16

To consider the outcomes of the review of the Corporate Overview and      

Public Document Pack



Scrutiny Committee Health Related Absence Study Group 

8.  CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - WORK 
PROGRAMME 2017/18 

17 - 25

To consider the Committee’s Work Programme 

9.  CORPORATE ISSUES AND REFORM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

26 - 33

Minutes of the minutes held on 16th January 2018 for information. 

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee Members
Councillor Sultan Ali Councillor Andy Bell
Councillor Robert Clegg Councillor Michael Holly
Councillor Daniel Meredith Councillor Kathleen Nickson
Councillor Linda Robinson Councillor Peter Rush
Councillor Susan Smith Councillor Mohammed Zaman
Councillor Sameena Zaheer

For more information about this meeting, please contact:
Peter Thompson
Governance and Committee Services, Floor 2, Number One Riverside,
Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU

Telephone: 01706 924715
e-mail: peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk 

mailto:peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk


CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Tuesday, 13th February 2018

PRESENT: Councillor Sultan Ali (Vice Chair in the Chair); Councillors, Holly, 
Meredith, Nickson, Rush, Smith, Zaheer and Zaman

OFFICERS: J. Searle (Director of Economy), V. Bradshaw (Chief Finance
Officer), J. Murphy (Deputy Chief finance officer), J. McGregor (Assistant
Director – Children’s Social Care), D. Bowler (Assistant Director – Place) and
P. Thompson (Resources Directorate)

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: Councillor O’Rourke (Cabinet Member for
Business, Skills and Employment Portfolio).

APOLOGIES
70 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Clegg and 
Robinson.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
71 There were no declarations of interest.

URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS
72 There were no urgent items of business for the Committee to consider.

ITEMS FOR EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS
73 There were no confidential items of business for the Committee to 
consider.

MINUTES
74 The Committee considered the minutes of the last meeting of the 
Committee held 23rd January 2018. 

A member referred to minute 66 (Resources and Neighbourhoods Directorate 
Plans 2017/18) insofar as it noted action being taken towards the 
implementation of paperless meetings and in doing so he referred to the size 
of the published agenda for this meeting of the Committee (320 pages) and 
expressed concern at the amount of paper being used in terms of copies for 
members of the Committee, officers and spare copies, suggesting that the 
Committee’s meetings, in the next Municipal Year, be conducted ‘paperless’ 
by way of an experiment to ascertain the viability of paperless meetings.

Decision:
1. The minutes of the meeting of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee, held 23rd January 2018, be approved as a correct record.
2. The clerk to the Committee be requested to consult with members on 

the feasibility of holding the Committee’s meetings, starting at the 
beginning of the 2018/19 Municipal Year, ‘paperless’ as a means of 
helping to gauge the viability of paperless member level meetings.   

Page 3

Agenda Item 5



FINANCE UPDATE REPORT 2017/18
75 The Committee scrutinised a report of the Chief Finance Officer which 
updated Members on the Council’s financial position as at the end of 
November 2017 and which had sought approval from the Cabinet of the 
Budget Pressures Fund and Capital Budget adjustments. This report had 
been approved by the Cabinet at its meeting on 30th January 2018, where the 
recommendations contained therein were approved. 

In considering the report Members noted the projected overspends relating to 
the Children’s Directorate, Economy Directorate and the Neighbourhoods 
Directorate. Representatives of these three Directorates were in attendance at 
the meeting to explain how the reported overspends had arisen and to answer 
Members questions and queries about proposed remedial action to reduce 
their Directorates’ overspends.

Alternatives considered:
Not reporting on financial performance puts at risk the achievement of the 
Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan. Effective budget management is 
critical to ensuring financial resources are spent in line with the budget and 
are targeted towards the Council’s priorities. Monitoring enables the early 
identification of variations against the plan and facilitates timely corrective 
action.

Decision:
(1) That the report be noted.

Reason for the decision (made by the Cabinet on 30th January 2018):
Effective financial management is essential if the Council is to keep spending 
within available resources. It is vital that services make adjustments in 
spending to ensure that they spend in line with the approved budget.

COLLECTION FUND 2017/18
76 The Committee scrutinised a report of the Chief Finance Officer which 
detailed the Council’s forecast 2017/18 Collection Fund position, as at the end 
of November 2017. The committee were advised that this report had been 
submitted to the Cabinet on 30th January 2018 where the recommendations 
contained therein were approved.
 
Alternatives considered:
Not reporting on financial performance puts at risk the achievement of the 
Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy. Effective financial management 
was critical to ensuring that financial resources are received in line with the 
budget, which enables them to be targeted towards the Council’s priorities. 
Monitoring enables the early identification of variations against the plan and 
facilitates timely corrective action.
 
Decision:
That the forecast 2017/18 Collection Fund position as at the end of November 
2017 be noted.

Page 4



 
Reason for decision (made by the Cabinet on 30th January 2018):
The Collection Fund update report for 2017/18 was presented for information 
purposes as part of the budget monitoring process.

REVENUE BUDGET UPDATE 2018/19 TO 2020/21
77 The Committee scrutinised a report of the Director of Resources on the 
latest position regarding the Council’s Revenue Budget for 2018/19 to 
2020/21 and which sought a recommendation to Council of a council tax 
increase for 2018/19 of 4.99% for the Rochdale Council element, comprising 
2.99% for general purposes and 2 % for the Adult Social Care Precept.

The report had previously been considered by the Cabinet at its meeting on 
30th January 2018 where the recommendations contained therein were 
approved.

Alternatives considered: 
The Cabinet could decide not to implement the proposals in the report and 
provide alternative options to enable a balanced budget to be achieved.

Decision:
That the report be noted.

Reasons for decision:
The Council’s Cabinet is required to recommend a balanced Revenue Budget 
for 2018/19 to Budget Council before 11th March 2018 and provisional 
budgets for 2019/20 to 2020/21.

2018/19 DISCRETIONARY BUSINESS RATE RELIEF POLICY
78 The Committee scrutinised a report of the Director of Resources noting 
that the  Discretionary Business Rate Relief Policy needed to be amended for 
2018/19 due to a change announced in the 2017 Autumn Budget. The 
Cabinet, at its meeting on 20th February 218, was being asked to consider a 
proposal to revise the Policy to raise additional business rate income.

The Cabinet was to be asked to consider making a recommendation to the 
Budget Council meeting on 28th February 2018, to revise the policy to raise 
additional business rates income. There were two options for the cabinet to 
consider: Option one – to introduce a maximum rateable value of £51,000, 
above which relief will not be granted to charitable and not-for-profit 
organisations. This will raise additional business rate income of approximately 
£205,000 per annum. Option two – no change to the existing policy.

Alternatives considered:
The change to the policy relating to Pub Relief had been determined by the 
Government and the Council was directed to implement, therefore no 
alternatives were considered.

Decision:
That the report be noted.

Page 5



Reasons for the decision:
The powers for granting discretionary rate relief by Councils were provided in 
Sections 44a, 47 and 49 of the Local Government Finance Act 1988, which 
was subsequently, amended by the Localism Act 2011 to incorporate wider 
powers to grant relief under local discretion.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY FOR 2018/19
79 The Committee scrutinised a report of the Chief Finance Officer that 
sought approval from the Council for the Borough’s Treasury Management 
Strategy 2018/2019. The main objectives of the Treasury Management 
Strategy were: to effectively manage and control the risks associated with 
treasury management activities giving regard to the CIPFA Code, and all 
relevant legislation, criteria and limits set within this report.

The Committee was advised that the submitted report was due to be 
considered by the Cabinet on 20th February 2018 and by the Budget Council 
meeting on 28th February 2018.

Alternatives considered:
There are no feasible alternatives – all proposals were in accordance with 
the revised CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management, which had 
been formally adopted by the Council, and with Government guidance 
regarding the Treasury Management Strategy.

Decision:
That the report be noted.

Reasons for the recommendation (to Cabinet on 20th February 2018):
The report w a s  produced to gain t h e  C a b i n e t ’ s  a p p r o v a l  o f  
t h e  Treasury Management Strategy, prior to submission to the Budget 
Council meeting on 28th February 2018 and to ensure that Cabinet Members 
be informed of and ensure adherence to the requirements of the Prudential 
Framework.

CAPITAL, INVESTMENT AND DISPOSAL STRATEGY 2018 TO 2021
80 The Committees scrutinised a report of the Chief Finance Officer which 
outlined the capital, investment and disposal strategy for the Council. This 
strategy was a three year plan which formed a key part of the Council’s asset 
management and property investment strategies. The strategy provided the 
framework for all aspects of the Council’s capital programme, including 
planning, prioritisation, management and funding.

The capital, investment and disposal strategy linked the Council’s vision and 
priorities with forecasted capital resources and capital budgets and flowed into 
the medium term financial strategy to ensure that all revenue implications 
were recognised and provided for in the revenue budgetary forecasts.

Page 6



The strategy considered: the purpose of the Strategy and links to national, 
regional and local priorities; priority areas for Investment; funding; governance 
arrangements; and the disposals strategy.

Alternatives considered:
The Council was legally obliged to set a balanced budget. The budget 
setting process was complex and was required to be undertaken in a 
planned way. Budgets thus were prepared in accordance with approved 
guidelines.

Decision:
That the report be noted.

Reasons for the recommendation (to the Cabinet on 20th February 2018):
The purpose of the Capital, investment and Disposal Strategy was to provide 
a framework within which the Council’s long term investment plans will be 
delivered to ensure that all capital investments were consistent with the 
Council’s priorities, consider associate risks, recognise financial constraints 
over the longer term and represent value for money.  These plans were to be 
driven by the Council’s Place Plan, The Townships Plan, The Council’s 
Medium Term Financial Strategy and the Council’s Asset Strategies.  

The Capital, Investment and Disposal Strategy should therefore comply with 
the Prudential Code for Local Authority Capital Investment introduced through 
the Local Government Act 2013 and the Council’s Treasury Management 
Strategy. The key objectives of the code were to ensure that Capital 
Investment Plans were affordable, prudent and sustainable.

MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2018/19 TO 2022/23
81 The Committee scrutinised a report of the Chief Finance Officer which 
presented the Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS). The aim of 
the MTFS was to provide a robust, consistent and sustainable approach to 
establishing and maintaining a stable and prudent financial basis on which 
improvement and transformation of the Council’s services progress. The 
MTFS was a key strategic part of the plan of the Council setting out its 
proposed detailed spending plans for the next two years and making forecasts 
for future years, based on current information. 

The Committee was informed that the budgetary proposals contained in the 
MTFS had been widely consulted upon. The MTFS was being presented to 
this Committee for consultative purposes, for further consideration at the 
Cabinet meeting on 20th February 2018 and for determination at the Budget 
Council meeting on 28th February 2018.

Alternatives considered:
The Council is legally obliged to set a balanced revenue budget. The budget 
setting process is complex and is required to be undertaken in a planned way. 
Whilst budgets are prepared in accordance with the approved guidelines a 
number of alternative options relating to savings proposals and budget 
pressures are considered as part of the overall budget setting process.

Page 7



Decision:
That the report be noted.

Reasons for the recommendation (to Cabinet on 20th February 2018):
The Cabinet is required to recommend a balanced Revenue Budget and 
Capital Programme for 2018/19 to the Budget Council meeting on 28th 
February 2018. The Council is required to set a balanced budget for 2018/19 
by no later than 11th March 2018. The Medium Term Financial Strategy thus 
provides a key part of the budget setting process. 

BUDGET 2018/19 - 2020/21 - LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2003 
REQUIREMENTS
82 The Committee scrutinised a report of the Chief Finance Officer relating 
to statutory requirements under the Local Government Act 2003. It was a legal 
requirement for this report to be presented to the Budget Council meeting for 
consideration immediately prior to setting the Budget and Council Tax. The 
recommendations contained in the report aimed to ensure that Council was 
aware of the opinion of the Chief Finance Officer regarding the robustness of 
the budget as proposed and the adequacy of general balances and reserves.

The Director of Resources advised that in giving a positive opinion on the 
robustness of the estimate process reliance had been placed on the Council’s 
overall arrangements for financial management, which were detailed at 
Appendix 1 to the submitted report.  These included the rolling Medium Term 
Financial Strategy, the process for financial forecasts and developing medium 
term revenue and capital plans, the approach to financial risks and 
arrangements for in year monitoring of budgets.  Account is also taken of the 
assessment of the Council’s external auditors, Grant Thornton LLP, as part of 
the annual audit opinion. The Chief Finance Officer confirmed that, in her 
opinion, the Council had robust procedures in place.

Alternatives considered:
None - it is a statutory requirement, under the Local Government Act 2003, to 
submit this report.  

Decision:
That the report be noted.

Reasons for the recommendation (to Cabinet on 20th February, and to Council 
on 28th February):
In order to comply with the Local Government Act 2003 the Chief Finance 
Officer is required to provide the Council with an opinion as to the robustness 
of the Budget being presented to its Budget setting meeting and to ensure the 
adequacy of general balances and reserves.

The Council is required to take account of this report when determining its 
budget.

Page 8



REVENUE BUDGET,CAPITAL PROGRAMME AND COUNCIL TAX 2018/19
83 The Committee scrutinised a report of the Chief Finance Officer which 
recommended the Revenue Budget (District Purposes), Capital Budget and 
Council Tax for 2018/2019, for submission to the Budget Council meeting on 
28th February 2018 and which provided estimates for 2019/2020 and 
2020/2021.

The budget proposals contained in the Committee’s report had been 
formulated after taking into account the comments of this Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee, the four Township Committees and the various service 
consultative groups all of whom had been consulted on proposals contained in 
the reports to the Cabinet.

The report set out the key financial challenges and issues which will be faced 
over the period 2018/19 to 2020/21 and provides details of the assumptions 
and estimates which underpinned the budget. The budget also took account 
of the latest known developments both regional and at a local level and from 
this year reports on the integration of health and social care within the pooled 
budget arrangements from 2018/19.

Alternatives considered:
None - The Chief Finance Officer reported that the Council had a legal 
requirement to set a balanced budget, and throughout the budget exercise a 
robust process has been put in place to consider alternative saving proposals 
and recognise risks.

Decision:
That the report be noted.

Reasons for the recommendation (to Cabinet on 20th February):
The Cabinet is required to consider and to recommend to the Budget Council 
meeting on 28th February a balanced Revenue Budget for 2018/19 and 
provisional budgets for 2019/20 to 2020/21 and a Council Tax increase for 
2018/19.

WORK PROGRAMME 2017/18
84 Members considered the Committee’s Work Programme for 
2017/2018. 

Decision:
That the report be noted.

Reason for the decision:
The report is presented for information purposes, outlining the Committee’s 
programme of reports during 2017/18.

Page 9



Report to Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Date of Meeting 20th March 2018
Portfolio Councillor Allen Brett: 

Leader of the Council and 
Cabinet Member for 
Corporate and Resources

Report Author Rosemary Barker
Public/Private Document Public

Health Related Absence Reporting

Executive Summary

1. The report provides third quarter health related absence figures to Members of 
the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

The third quarter health related absence figures (October - December 2017) 
indicate that the overall level for the Council was 2.36 days per FTE (excluding 
schools staff). This represents a reduction of 0.39% compared to the same 
quarter in the previous year (2.75 days per FTE).

Recommendation

2. It is recommended that Members of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee note the third quarter position for the Council for 2017/18 and the 
reduction in absence levels compared to the same period in the previous year.

Reason for Recommendation

3. To provide Members of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee with 
an update of the health related absence data.

Key Points for Consideration

4. The third quarter health related absence figures, indicate that the overall level for 
the Authority was 2.36 days per FTE, of which 1.55 days (66%) were due to long 
term sickness absence.  The days lost for the same period in 2016/17 was 2.75 
days per FTE of which 1.86 (68%) were due to long term sickness absence.

Table 1 shows the third quarter absence data per Directorate overall. 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

Page 10

Agenda Item 6



Quarter 3 absence data (October – December 2017)

Directorate
Days lost to 

long term 
absence

Days lost to 
short term 
absence

Total 
Days lost FTE’s Days lost 

per FTE

Executive 0.00 0.00 0.00 2 0.00
Adult Care Service 433.40 303.06 736.46 297 2.48
Public Health 65.00 48.16 113.15 55 2.06
Children’s Services 915.60 487.81 1403.41 658 2.13
Economy 22.00 19.05 41.05 81 0.51
Neighbourhoods 1615.21 725.44 2340.64 859 2.72
Resources 360.38 194.75 555.13 244 2.28
Total (exc Schools) 3411.59 1778.27 5189.84 2196 2.36

Schools 4521.14 2416.47 6937.62 3387 2.05

TABLE 1

It should be noted that 73% of individuals working in schools are employed by the 
Council, and the remaining 27% are employed by the Governing Body.  

Based upon an analysis of the quarter 1 – quarter 3 data, long term absence 
accounted for the majority of absences.  “Stress, depression and related 
problems”, was the top reason for long term absence, “operative/post operative” 
and “gastric, stomach, kidney, liver” being the other 2 top reasons. 

Short term absence accounted for 33% of absences, with “colds, flu & viral 
infections” being the top reason for short term absence, with “gastric, stomach, 
kidney, liver” and “stress/depression” accounting for the other 2 top reasons.

Members of the Committee will be aware of the strategies and measures that 
Directorates and the Council have in place to improve attendance and support 
staff.  The Council is committed to continuously reduce absence and will continue 
to monitor and manage attendance through its policies and procedures.

Alternatives Considered

As this is part of the Council’s performance management process, there are no 
other alternatives. 

Costs and Budget Summary

5. Any financial implications arising from sickness absence are reported by 
Directorates through the Revenue Finance Updates reports presented to 
Cabinet on a quarterly basis.

Risk and Policy Implications

Page 11



6. Significant health related absence will impact on the Council`s capacity to 
deliver its corporate objectives, therefore effective management of health 
related absence is a whole organisation responsibility.

Consultation

7. In compiling this report, Directors and Assistant Directors have been advised 
on performance relating to their service areas. Trade Unions have also been 
provided with information.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. There are no background papers 
to this report.

N/A

For Further Information Contact: Rosemary Barker
rosemary.barker@rochdale.gov.uk
01706 926245

Page 12

mailto:rosemary.barker@rochdale.gov.uk


Report to Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Date of Meeting 20th March 2018
Portfolio Leader of the Council and 

Cabinet Member for 
RegenerationCorporate & 
Resources

Report Author Rosemary Barker, on 
behalf of the Corporate 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Health Related Absence 
Study Group

Public/Private Document Public

Health Related Absence Study Group Report

Executive Summary

1. 1.1      This report details the outcome of the review of the Corporate Overview and      
Scrutiny Committee Health Related Absence Study Group and seeks 
agreement to the recommendations detailed below.

Recommendation

2. 2.1       Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee recognise the improvements in 
attendance and request that Leadership Team continue to ensure that 
appropriate robust management arrangements and targeted support are 
offered to those employees who are absent through sickness. In this regard 
the Head of Workforce and OD to monitor absence levels and report to the 
Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee on an annual basis (any 
significant issues to be reported to the Committee as required)

2.2 The Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee note the suggested 
approach to the Council`s Health Related Absence Targets, in that the 
Councils position within AGMA, will be taken into account by the Leadership 
Team when setting Attendance Targets. 

2.3t The Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee consider requesting that the 
Head of Workforce and OD assess any appropriate provisions to support 
employees experiencing non work related stress, including encouraging staff 
to undertake training in mental health first aid (subject to costs being met from 
within existing budgets). 

2.4 In addition to the above recommendations the Committee are asked to note;
The 2016 staff survey results as they relate to health and wellbeing. The 
Committee are also asked to note that the Study Group fully acknowledges 
the actions currently being taken by managers, the HR Service and Trade 
Unions to robustly manage attendance and proactively support employees 

Page 13

Agenda Item 7



with health issues.

Reason for Recommendation

3. 3.1  To present the outcome of the review of the Health Related Absence Study 
Group and to agree the recommendations of the Group.

Key Points for Consideration

4 4.1 A Member Overview and Scrutiny Study Group was established (as agreed by the 
Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 18th July 2017) to examine the 
Council`s Health Related Absence Policy. The Group comprised; Elected Members 
(nominated from the Corporate Overview & Scrutiny Committee), Officers who 
inputted to the review from both a corporate and operational perspective and Trade 
Union representatives. The Study Group met on five occasions in total and 
considered numerous issues and evidence, on which the Members have been fully 
engaged.

4.2 The purpose of the Group was to examine the Councils Health Related Absence 
Policy and in particular to undertake a review into long-term sickness absence due 
to non-work related stress as this is the highest reason for sickness absence. The 
initial meeting of the Group determined the full scope and approach for the review 
and considered the following: 
a) assessed data related to the incidence of long-term sickness absence.
b) reviewed the processes for the referral and the management of long term 
absences, 
c) considered what further support managers might require in applying the Health 
Related Absence Policy.
d) reviewed the suitability of the current Health and Wellbeing strategy, in the 
context that the highest reason for absence is non-work related stress.
e) took into consideration staff comments regarding the Councils Health & 
Wellbeing Strategy, raised through the 2016 staff survey and determined 
appropriate actions. 
f) considered the Councils targets both organisational and at directorate level

4.3 The Group were able to assure themselves that the Council has processes in place 
to collect the required types of data and that analysis is being undertaken to identify 
trends and develop strategies to improve attendance. The Group considered that 
the data analysis could be improved by the inclusion of year on year comparisons 
as detailed below.

Page 14



4.4 The Group were provided with details of the arrangements for the management of 
long-term sickness absence. They were provided with an overview of the 
processes that are undertaken from the point an individual first notifies of sickness 
absence through to either returning to work or leaving the organisation. The Group 
were also provided with details of Directorship strategies, by management 
representatives from Children’s Social Care, Adult Care and Neighbourhoods. The 
Group considered that the provision of Corporate and Directorate health related 
absence strategies would enable the Corporate Overview Scrutiny Committee to 
better assess performance against targets. (The Tables below provides details of 
Council performance).

AGMA year-end figures 2016/17 (excluding Schools)
Employer Days Lost per FTE
Salford 12.6
Manchester 11.94
Bolton 11.83
Bury 11.21
Rochdale 10.66
Trafford 10.51
Stockport 10.3
Wigan 9.75
Oldham 9.16
Tameside 7.63
Average 10.55 

ABSENCE COMPARED TO TARGET (excluding schools)  
DIRECTORSHIP ABSENCE

16/17
CURRENT
TARGET

DIFFERENCE PROJECTIONS
17/18*

DIFFERENCE

ADULT CARE 11.63 9.00 2.63 10.07 1.07
CHILDRENS 9.10 7.90 1.20 7.97 0.07
ECONOMY 5.08 5.00 0.08 9.27 4.27

NEIGHBOURHOODS 13.64 9.00 4.64 9.65 0.65
PUBLIC HEALTH 4.96 5.00 0.04 4.71 0.29

RESOURCES 6.73 7.17 0.44 7.11 0.06
CORPORATE 10.66 7.45 3.21 8.77 1.32

* Projections based upon Q1, Q2 & Q3 actuals

4.5 The Group were provided with details of the Council`s Health & Wellbeing Strategy 
including the Action Plan for implementation. The Group also considered the 2016 
Staff Survey results detailed below and suggested that consideration should be 
given to ways in which staff engagement could be used to inform the development 
and implementation of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy: 

 
“The results suggest that not all staff find the Council to be a healthy work 
environment which promotes wellbeing. A third of staff have felt unwell in the last 
12 months as a result of work related stress and 58% of staff have come into work 
during the last 3 months despite not feeling well enough to perform their duties. In 
addition, a quarter of staff felt that they were unable to meet all the conflicting 
demands made on their time in work. Only half of staff agree or strongly agree that 
the Council takes positive action on health and wellbeing”. 

Page 15



4.6 The group identified the following conclusions for consideration by the Committee 
in relation to management of long-term sickness absences;
 Members of the Study Group were satisfied that the arrangements for 

managing absence and supporting employees were robust. 
 Reporting schools data separately to the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee would provide a more accurate reflection of absence levels 
within the Council (this is consistent with the approach taken by other 
AGMA Authorities) and recommend that this is taken into consideration by 
the Leadership Team when setting Attendance Targets.

 that the Council should continue to review how the health and well-being 
strategy is impacting on reducing sickness absence and consider further 
ways in which staff engagement could be facilitated to inform and support 
the development and implementation of the strategy

Alternatives considered

The Study Group considered a range of alternatives before arriving at their 
recommendations above.

Costs and Budget Summary

5. 5.1 Improvements in attendance will contribute to reductions in the overall cost of 
sickness absence

Risk and Policy Implications

6. 6.1 The Study directly impacts on the corporate priorities of the Council and 
Members gave appropriate regard to these priorities during their 
considerations.

Consultation

7. 7.1     The Trade Unions have provided their comments to Members of the study 
Group and these comments have been taken into consideration. 

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. None NA

For Further Information Contact: Louise Griffiths, Tel: 01706926250, 
louise.griffiths@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 16



CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 

WORK PROGRAMME 2017/18

Who are we?

The Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee is made up of 11 Members 
(reflecting the Council’s political balance) who manage the functions of the 
Committee (as detailed within the Constitution of the Council- also see the 
how we do it section below).  The meeting dates and report deadline dates 
are as follows:  

Name of Committee Final Reports Deadline
Agenda Publication 
Deadline

Date of meeting

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee 
Thursday, 2nd June, 2017 Monday, 6th June, 2017 Tuesday, 14th June, 2017

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee
Thursday, 6th July, 2017 Monday, 10th July, 2017 Tuesday, 18th July, 2017

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee
Thursday, 5th October, 2017 Monday, 9th October, 2017

Tuesday, 17th October, 

2017

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee
Thursday, 9th November, 2017

Monday, 13th November, 

2017

Tuesday, 21st November, 

2017

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee
Thursday, 11th January, 2018 Monday, 15th January, 2018

Tuesday, 23rd January, 

2018

Budget Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee
Thursday, 1st February, 2018 Monday, 5th February, 2018

Tuesday, 13th February, 

2018

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee
Thursday, 8th March, 2018 Monday, 12th March, 2018 Tuesday, 20th March, 2018

What we do
The Committee’s primary role is to hold the executive to account by way of 
undertaking policy and budget development reviews as well as 
questioning/challenging the judgement and decisions making of the 
Executive, Members, Portfolio Holders and Senior Officers. The Committee’s 
work is also supported by the study groups it commissions and monitors. 

How we do it
The functions of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee are:
 Develop a work programme detailing the objectives, timetable and 

methodology.
 Responsible Committee for scrutiny of Townships generally; corporate 

service development and delivery; for scrutiny of partnerships or key 
contractors (e.g. Agilysis); corporate performance monitoring; 
corporate financial monitoring and the annual budget development 

Page 17

Agenda Item 8



consultation, and for overview of the respective Portfolio Holders and 
Directors.

 Respond to consultation by Cabinet on relevant policy development 
and the annual budget proposals.

 Scrutinise the in-year performance of Council Services and other 
appropriate bodies, in accordance with the Council’s Performance 
Management Framework and against approved Directorate Plans, 
where appropriate.

 Scrutinise in-year budget performance.
 Instigate the appropriate action in response to adverse service 

performance.
 Scrutinise inspection reports and associated action plans produced by 

external agencies (where appropriate to this Committee).
 Review and scrutinise executive decisions in accordance with the 

Council’s Constitution, which have been called-in by Members of the 
Council.

 Receive reports, where appropriate, from the Council’s representatives 
on outside bodies, and to direct representatives to report to the 
Council, where appropriate.

 Commission, scope and oversee studies and reviews relating to 
Council Services and issues directly affecting the Borough and, where 
appropriate, to make recommendations to the Cabinet arising from 
such studies and reviews.

 Consider annual Service Plans in line with Council Policy (Part 4E - 
Constitution of the Council).

Page 18



APPENDIX

CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – MEETINGS IN 
2017/18

14th June 2017

18th July 2017

Work Programme To note the Committee’s Work 
Programme for 2016/2017

Call-in/Member items/other referrals
Directorate Plans 2017/18 Performance management and 

monitoring
Presentation – Agilisys (presentation 
highlighting KPI’s)

Performance management and 
monitoring

Performance Monitoring (4th Quarter 
2016/17) – including:

 Corporate Complaints
 Health related Absences

Policy Framework

Presentation – Revenues and benefits 
Service

Member’s request - for information

Budget 2018/19 to 2020/21 Guidelines, 
Timetable and Public Engagement

A presentation  outlining 
procedures for the development of 
the Council’s budgetary process 

Cyber Security Presentation on the Council’s 
cyber security strategy

Work Programme To consider the Committee’s Work 
Programme for 2016/17

Call-in/Member items/other referrals
Directorate Plan Updates (4th Quarter 
2016/17)
 Resources Directorate
 Neighbourhoods (Corporate 

Services) Directorate

Performance management and 
monitoring

Place Branding - Presentation Committee request

Revenue Finance Outturn Report 
2016/17 

Financial scrutiny

Capital Finance Outturn Report 2016/17 Financial scrutiny
Savings outturn Report 2016/17 Financial scrutiny
Collection Fund Outturn Report 2016/17 Financial scrutiny
Delegated Approvals 2016/17 Financial scrutiny
Notes of Health Related Absence 
meeting (9th March 2017)

For information

GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool - minutes For information

Page 19



Asset Strategy – Progress Report Update on the Borough’s Asset 
Strategy programme approved in 
March 2016

17th October 2017

Work Programme 2016/2017 To note the Committee’s Work 
Programme for 2016/2017

Call-in/Member items/other referrals  
Local Government Ombudsman:  
Annual Review 2016/17

Performance monitoring and 
management

Proposed Local Positive Recruitment 
Criteria Policy

Consultation on policy proposals

Welfare Reform 2016 Presentation on proposals
Financial Update Report 2017/18 Financial scrutiny

Collection Fund 2017/18 Financial scrutiny

Medium Term Financial Strategy 
2018/19 – 2022/23

Financial scrutiny

Revenue Budget Update 2018/19 to 
2020/21 and Savings Programme 
2018/19 – 2020/21

Financial scrutiny

Discretionary Fees and Charges 
2018/19

Financial scrutiny

Capital Programme 2018/19 to 2020/21 Financial scrutiny

Savings Programme 2018/19 – 2020/21 
– Workforce related proposals

Financial scrutiny

GMCA/AGMA  Scrutiny Pool - Minutes

21st November 2017

Work Programme 2016/17 To note the Committee’s Work 
Programme for 2016/2017

Call-in/Member items/other referrals  
 Directorate Plan Update: 1st & 2nd 

Quarters – 2017/18 (April – 
September)

 Resources Directorate
 Neighbourhoods (Corporate 

Services) Directorate

Performance monitoring and 
management

Local Government Ombudsman’s 
Annual Review 2015/16

Performance management and 
monitoring

Savings Programme and Discretionary 
Fees and Charges (post consultation 
report)

Scrutiny of proposals

Budget Preparation:

Page 20



 Calculation of the Council Tax 
Base 2018/19

 Setting the Business Rate Base 
2018/19

 Greater Manchester Waste 
Disposal Levy Allocation 2018/19

Financial scrutiny

Manchester Airport Group – Strategic 
Investment Policy

Financial scrutiny

Risk Share Agreement – Integrated 
Health and Social Care Pooled Fund 
2018/19

Scrutiny of proposals

23rd January 2018

Work Programme To note the Committee’s Work 
Programme for 2016/2017

Call-in/Member items/other referrals  
Performance Monitoring: 1st and 2nd 
Quarters 2017/18 (April – September)

 Corporate Complaints
 Health related absences

Performance monitoring and 
management

Directorate Plan Update reports 
 Resources Directorate
 Neighbourhoods (Corporate 

Services) Directorate

Performance monitoring and 
management

Budget Monitoring :
 Financial Update 2017/18
 Collection Fund Update 2017/18

Performance monitoring and 
management

Presentation – Agilisys (presentation 
highlighting KPI’s)

Performance monitoring and 
management

GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool - Minutes

13th February 2018 (Budget Scrutiny meeting)

Work Programme To note the Committee’s Work 
Programme for 2016/2017

Call-in/Member items/other referrals  
Council Tax – Discount for Foster 
Carers

Budget development

Medium Term Financial Strategy 
2017/18 – 2020/21

Budget Scrutiny

Treasury Management Strategy Budget Scrutiny
Corporate Debt Strategy Budget Scrutiny
Local Government Act 2003 (a statutory 
report on the robustness of the budget)

Budget Scrutiny

Revenue and Capital Budgets and 
Council Tax 2017/18  

Budget Scrutiny

Page 21



20th March 2018

Work Programme To note the Committee’s Work 
Programme for 2016/2017

Call-in/Member items/other referrals
Presentation of the final report of the 
Absence Management Study Group

Scrutiny of the Study Group’s 
recommendations

Performance Monitoring :
 Corporate Sickness Absences

Performance monitoring and 
management

GMCA/AGMA  Scrutiny Pool – Minutes

Page 22



CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Actions List (March 2018)

ISSUE/MEETING 
REQUESTED

ACTION RESPONSIBLE 
OFFICER(S)

TIMESCALE OUTCOME

Call Centre/Agilisys 
Performance of KPI’s

The Assistant Director 
(Information, Customers and 
Communities), to submit a report 
detailing performance against 
agreed KPIs.

Mark Jones January 2018 The Committee 
agreed to receive 
six monthly updates 
on progress against 
the KPI’s  and to 
visit the Call Centre 
to view its 
operations in an 
operational setting 

Local Government 
Ombudsman Annual 
Report 2016/17
(Min 46)

To circulate to Members details of 
the one complaint that was not 
upheld by LGO

Assistant Director 
(Information, Customers 
and Communities) 

N/A Details forwarded to 
members of the 
Committee, via e-
mail on 8th January 
2018

Savings Proposals & 
Discretionary Fees and 
Charges
(Min 48)

Members requested further 
information regarding: the 
proposed Rats/Mice removal 
charges; and the potential impact 
of the proposed restructure of the 
Planning Enforcement Team 

Chief Finance Officer N/A Details forwarded to 
members of the 
Committee, via e-
mail on 8th January 
2018

Greater Manchester 
Waste Disposal Levy 
Allocation
(Min 51)

Members requested further 
information regarding the status of 
Wigan MBC vis-à-vis GMWDA, the 
possible impact of Brexit and 
potential contractual opt-outs  

Chief Finance Officer N/A Details forwarded to 
members of the 
Committee, via e-
mail on 8th January 
2018

P
age 23



Manchester Airport 
Group
(Minute 52)

Members requested clarification on 
the issue of tax benefits that are 
associated with shareholder loans

Chief Finance Officer N’/A Details forwarded to 
members of the 
Committee, via e-
mail on 8th January 
2018

Absence Management 
Study Group

Final Report of the Scrutiny Study 
Group

Head of Human 
Resources

February 2018 A report is 
scheduled to be 
submitted to the 
Committee’s 
meeting on 12th 
February 2018

Asset Strategy The Head of Property Services to 
update the Committee on a 
revised/refreshed Asset Strategy in 
2018/19

Head of Property 
Services 

Report to the 
Corporate O&S 
Committee in June 
2018

Scheduled for first 
meeting of the 
Committee in 
2018/19

Insurance Claims An annual report covering 
insurance claims will be presented 
to the Committee in the autumn of 
2018, to align with the insurance 
annual cycle (September – 
September)

Director of Resources Report to the 
Corporate O&S 
Committee in autumn 
2018

Scheduled for a  
meeting of the 
Committee in the 
autumn of 2018

Jobs & Investments 
Grants and 
Discretionary Business 
Rates Relief

A presentation detailing 
opportunities for Jobs & 
Investments Grants and 
Discretionary Business Rates 
Relief

Director of Economy February 2018 A meeting of 
Committee 
members was held 
on Tuesday, 13th 
February 2018

Rochdale Riverside Informal Briefing of Council 
Members

Director of Economy To be confirmed An  informal briefing 
of COS and CRE 
O&S Committee 
members is 
scheduled to be 
held on Tuesday, 

P
age 24



20th March, ahead 
of the COS meeting

Paperless Meetings To assess the feasibility of holding 
‘paperless’ meetings of the 
Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

Committee Services and 
members of the 
Committee

The start of the 
2018/19 Municipal 
Year 

P
age 25



1 

 

ITEM 4 
 

 

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE GMCA CORPORATE ISSUES AND REFORM 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE TUESDAY 16 JANUARY 2018 1.00PM, AT 

TRAFFORD TOWN HALL 

 

PRESENT 

Councillor Nathan Evans  Trafford Council (Chair) 

Councillor Tim Pickstone  Bury Council 

Councillor Stella Smith  Bury Council 

Councillor Colin McLaren  Oldham Council 

Councillor Ateeque Ur Rehman Oldham Council 

Councillor Neil Butterworth  Rochdale Council  

Councillor David Jolley  Salford City Council 

Councillor Yvonne Guariento Stockport Council 

Councillor John McGahan  Stockport Council 

Councillor John Bell   Tameside Council 

Councillor Leanne Feeley   Tameside Council  

 

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE 

Andy Burnham GM Mayor  

Eamonn Boylan   Chief Executive, GMCA 

Richard Paver   Treasurer, GMCA 

Susan Ford    Scrutiny Officer, GMCA 

Donna Parker    Governance and Scrutiny, GMCA 

Dawn Docx    Deputy County Fire Officer, GMFRS 

Smyth Harper Head of Communications, GMCA   

Amanda Fox Group Finance Lead, GMCA 

Kevin Lee Director of the Mayor’s Office, GMCA 

Steve Warrener  Finance & Corporate Services Director, TfGM 

Paul McGarry Head of GM Ageing Hub, GMCA 

Page 26

Agenda Item 9



2 

 

 

CI/22/17 APOLOGIES 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Debbie Newall (Bolton) and Pam 

Stewart (Wigan). 

 

CI/23/17  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were no Declarations of Interest received.   

 

CI/24/17 MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD 19TH DECEMBER 2017 

The Minutes of the meeting held 19th December 2017 were submitted for consideration.   

Resolved/- That the minutes of the meeting held 19th December 2017 be approved as 

an accurate record.  

 

CI/25/17 URGENT BUSINESS 

There were no Chair’s announcements or urgent business.  

 

CI/26/17           PRESENTATION ON THE BUDGET 2018/19 

Consideration was given to a report of Richard Paver, GMCA Treasurer, which provided 

an update on the current issues being faced in preparing the following budgets for 

2018/19:- 

- Mayoral General (including Fire); 

- Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA); 

- Transport Levy; 

- Association of Greater Manchester Authorities (AGMA); 

- The draft capital programme for 2018/19 onwards and the operation of the 

Earnback Scheme’.  

A report was submitted to the Committee on 19th December 2017 on the likely outturn 

position for the various GM Budgets for 2017/18 and outlined the process being adopted 

for setting the Mayoral General Precept and district contributions for 2018/19 towards 

Transport and GMCA/AGMA budgets (Minute CI/26/17 refers). 

The Committee were advised that the various budgets considered within the report, would 

formally be considered by the GMCA at its meeting on 26th January 2018 at which stage 

the Transport levy and GMCA/AGMA budgets would be set. The Mayoral General Budget 

(which included Fire) would be submitted by the Mayor to that meeting for consideration 

by the GMCA.  Should that budget need to be re-submitted, possibly only reflecting 

changes in some of the funding levels bases, then a further meeting of the GMCA was 

planned for 20th February 2018.  The Mayor would then be in a position to agree the levels 

Page 27



3 

 

of the PCC and General precepts and to notify District Councils ahead of their formal 

budget setting meetings starting 21st February 2018. 

The Committee were invited to make observations on the content of the report to the 

GMCA/Mayor prior to these meetings. 

A Member requested further information on the Greater Manchester Fire and Rescue 

Service (GMFRS) Financial Strategy 2018/19 to 2020/21 which specific reference to the 

Mayors intention to postpone some elements of the Integrated Risk Management Plan 

(IRMP) including the postponed reduction in the number of appliances operating out of 

specific stations across Greater Manchester and if this had an impact on Risk 

Management. In response, Andy Burnham advised that there had been much change in 

GMFRS and himself and Dawn Docx, the newly appointed Deputy County Fire Officer 

wanted to develop an alternative saving plan to deliver the saving required and gain a 

better understanding of the potential pressures facing GMFRS such as the New National 

Framework for Fire and Rescue Services in England, the introduction of a new inspection 

regime for the Fire and Rescue Service and any relevant outcomes from the Grenfell 

Tower Inquiry and the Kerslake Inquiry. 

The Chair made reference to the introduction of overtime for firefighters for a limited six 

months period. In response, Andy Burnham advised that this was due to an underspend 

in firefighter vacancies which meant that recruitment needed to be accelerated to meet 

the gap and overtime would be used at time and a half for a limited time period at an 

estimated cost of £2.6m. 

A Member made reference to how the Mayoral General Precept would be displayed on 

the Council Tax Bill. In response, Richard Paver advised that it would be displayed on the 

Council Tax bill as ‘Mayoral General Precept (including Fire)’. 

A Members made reference to the collapse of Carillion Plc and would this affect GMCA. 

In response, Eamonn Boylan advised the GMCA was working directly with the 10 local 

authorities, Greater Manchester Police and Transport for Greater Manchester on this and 

the government response would provide guidance on the consequences and how to 

progress. 

A Members referred to the ‘Earnback Revenue Summary’ detailed at paragraph 8.2 of 

the report and sought clarity on the ‘Women against State Pension Increase concession’. 

In response, Andy Burnham advised that as part of his Mayoral Manifesto he had 

committed to assist women in Greater Manchester that had been most affected by the 

Pension Equalisation Act in 2011. It was the proposal for Transport for Greater 

Manchester to give a limited group of women their travel concession passes when they 

thought they would be retiring prior to this being accelerated and, if agreed, this would be 

implemented from 1st April 2018, subject to the current consultations 

Richard Paver confirmed that the AGMA general reserve currently stood at £1.8 million 

and after allowing for meeting the one-off costs around the Spatial Framework and GM 

Moving, it was realistic to suggest that £0.8 million of the that reserve was refunded to 

districts leaving £0.5million to meet the future risks and/or cost pressures. 

Page 28



4 

 

Members and Officers had a discussion on the various reserves and how these would be 

managed under the Mayoral budget. 

In conclusion, Richard Paver reported that moving forward over the coming year would 

bring together of a number of budget areas under the GMCA/Mayor to which the Waste 

levy would be included from 1st April 2018. To date, work on consolidating staffing and 

budgets had to be finalised to give a basis on which to build budgets for 2018/19.   

The Chair welcomed the informative report and detailed discussion and requested that 

an update on the Budget 2018/2019 was submitted to the September meeting of the 

Committee. 

Resolved/- 

1. That the issues being considered in preparing the various 2018/19 budgets, be 

noted.  

 

2. That subject to decisions to be taken by the Mayor/GMCA, it be noted, that there is 

the scope to return funding to the GM districts arising from:- 

 

-  Return of part of AGMA reserves (£800,000); 

-  Reduction in GMCA contribution (£670,000); 

-  Return to districts of parts of the retained business rates (£4.9m); 

-  Reduction in the Transport levy (up to £3.9m). 

           

3. That an update report on the Budget 2018/19 be submitted to the meeting of the   

           Committee in September 2018. 

 

CI/27/17 GREATER MANCHESTER AGE FRIENDLY STRATEGY 

Consideration was given to a report of Paul McGarry, Head of the Greater Manchester 

Ageing Hub, which presented the Greater Manchester Age Friendly Strategy that was 

agreed by the GM Reform Board on Friday 1st December 2017. The report invited the 

Committee to review and comment on the Strategy prior to it being submitted to the 

Greater Manchester Combined Authority on 23rd February 2018 for consideration and 

approval. 

Members were advised that the Strategy was based on the World Health Organisation’s 

eight-domain model of ageing and had been developed in the context of GM’s specific 

opportunities offered by GM’s scale, devolution and well-established multi-sectoral 

collaboration on the one hand and the challenges of wide-spread disadvantages and 

social exclusion amongst older people on the other. 

Paul McGarry gave a presentation which detailed the work that the background of Greater 

Manchester Ageing Hub and the work that was currently taking place across Greater 

Manchester which included the following:- 

- Work and skills system that supports older workers; 

- Age-friendly communities at scale; 

Page 29



5 

 

- Narrative and communications; 

- Innovation in ageing; 

- Housing and planning; 

- Culture; 

- Transport; 

- Leadership for age-friendly initiatives. 

The Committee welcomed the informative report and raised a series questions and 

comments in response to the presentation and Strategy which included the following:- 

A Member advised that hospital appointments used to be held at local general hospitals 

which were well served by public transport, however, now appointments were often held 

at hub sites that were less accessible and this was causing difficulty to the ageing 

population. In response Paul McGarry, advised that the Hub was aware of this issue and 

a study was taking place to identify areas of best practice across the country including 

‘Age-friendly’ hospitals that also improved the layout of hospitals for example to provide 

the appropriate seating for the elderly and rest areas along long corridors. 

A Member referred to loneliness as an issue and how it affected people of different ages. 

Also how many of the elderly do not use the internet and therefore could be missing an 

opportunity to interact digitally and access vital information.  

A Member advised that as a Ward Councillor she met a lot of people aged over 50 who 

wanted to work and found it difficult to find suitable employment for various reasons. 

Could the GMCA introduce a policy to ensure that the larger organisations employed a 

quota of people over the age of 50. In response, Paul McGarry advised that the evidence 

stated the main reasons why people who were aged over 50 may struggled to find work 

included ill-health, lack of skills and confidence and this was a challenge that the city 

region would be looking for innovative ways to address moving forward. 

A Member commented that there were very few references to ‘volunteering’ in the 

Strategy and that many retired people volunteered in their local communities. It was 

important not to forget this contribution made by older people. 

A Member noted the huge differences and needs which were encompassed within the 

generic term older people.  In particular he was concerned about the social needs of those 

who were very frail living in residential or nursing home whose only social connection was 

their family and carers.  Could this be better reflected in the Strategy? 

A Member raised the issue of the importance of ongoing building maintenance of 

adaptions such as lifts which necessary to ensure a building remained disability compliant 

and could this be included in the Strategy. In response, Paul McGarry advised that 

guidance was being published later in the year on building compliance. 

In conclusion, the Chair confirmed that the Committee supported the proposed ‘Greater 

Manchester Age Friendly Strategy’ and requested that the Greater Manchester Age 

Friendly Strategy implementation plan be circulated to the Committee, for information. 

Resolved/- 

1. That the content of the report, and presentation be noted. 

Page 30



6 

 

 

2.     That the comments raised by the Committee should be considered prior to the 

Greater Manchester Age Friendly Strategy being submitted to the Greater 

Manchester Combined Authority on 23rd February 2018 for approval. 

 

3.        The Greater Manchester Age Friendly Strategy Implementation Plan be circulated 

to the Committee for information once approved. 

 

CI/30/17 WORK PROGRAMME 2017/18 

The Committee received an updated work programme following comments and 

suggestions made at the last meeting.  

At the last meeting it had been agreed that a School Readiness Task and Finish Group 

would be established and Councillors Zahra Alijah, Stella Smith and Yvonne Guariento 

had nominated themselves to sit on this group.  Councillor Colin McLaren also nominated 

himself to sit on the group at the meeting.  

Tt was also agreed at the last meeting of the Committee to establish a Fire Task and 

Finish Group and Councillors John Bell, John McCann and Peter Malcolm (substitute 

members) had volunteered to sit on this group. Councillor John Bell was keen for the 

group met in the near future and also requested that a female councillor join the group to 

ensure gender balance. In response, Councillor Yvonne Guariento nominated herself to 

the group.  

Susan Ford advised that she would submit a scoping documents for both Task and Finish 

Groups at the next meeting in February for consideration to move the work forward. 

Councillor Stella Smith asked if any work could commence on the School Readiness Task 

and Finish Group in advance of the group meeting. In response, Susan Ford advised that 

she would speak to Members at the rise of the meeting to discuss this matter in further 

detail. 

It was confirmed that Councillor Angeliki Stogia had been invited to the next meeting of 

the Committee in February for the GMCA Communications update item.  

Members agreed to consider the transition of the Greater Manchester Waste Authority 

(GMWDA) to the Combined Authority at the March meeting of the Committee. It was also 

agreed that a Fire update would also be considered at the meeting of the Committee in 

March as requested by Members at the last meeting in December 2017.   

In conclusion, it was agreed that the work programme should be updated as follows:- 

MEETING DATE  TOPIC CONTACT OFFICER 

20th February  

2018 

6.00pm 

GMCA - Accredited Living Wage 

Employer. 

Richard Paver, GMCA 

GMCA Communications (Brand GMCA) Claire Norman, GMCA 

& NHS 

Page 31



7 

 

 

Resolved/- 

1. That the Committee’s Work Programme for the 2017/18 be updated accordingly 

and considered at the next meeting of the Committee. 

 

CI/31/17 FUTURE MEETING DATES 2018 

Resolved/-  

 

1. That the next meetings of the Corporate Issues Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

in 2018 take place on: 

 

- Tuesday 20th February 2018 at 6.00pm in the Boardroom at Churchgate House; 

- Tuesday 20th March 2018 at 1.00pm in the Council Chamber at Trafford Town Hall; 

- Wednesday 18th April 2018 at 6.00pm at Churchgate House, Manchester. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

To consider the scope of the  School 

Readiness Task and Finish Group and 

Fire Task and Finish Group 

Susan Ford 

   

20th Mar 2018 

1.00pm 

School ready to learn Jane Forrest 

Performance of GMFRS Dawn Docx 

 Transition of the GMWDA to GMCA Richard Paver / 

John Bland 

   

18th April 2018 

6.00pm 

GM Strategy Implementation Plan 

Update  

Simon Nokes  

  

Page 32



8 

 

 

 

 

Page 33


	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	6 Health Related Absence Reporting
	7 Health Related Absence Study Group Report
	8 Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee - Work Programme 2017/18
	COSActionsList

	9 Corporate Issues and Reform Overview and Scrutiny Committee

